
SANTA MARIA/SANTA BARBARA COUNTY CONTINUUM OF CARE 

BOARD MEETING 

Thursday, December 5, 2019 
2:00pm-4:00pm 

Goleta City Hall, Council Chambers 
130 Cremona Drive, Suite B 
Goleta, CA 

Call-in Locations: 
Anaheim Maingate Inn 
1211 West Place 
Anaheim, CA 

MEETING AGENDA 

If you wish to address any item listed on the Agenda, please feel free to participate in the discussion. The Santa 
Maria / Santa Barbara County Continuum of Care does not discriminate against persons with disabilities and holds 

meetings in accessible facilities. If you wish to attend this meeting and you require assistance in order to 
participate, please email CoC staff (lboss@co.santa-barbara.ca.us) at least 48 hours in advance of the event to 

make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to this meeting. For items not listed on the Agenda, please 
see items from the public comment section below. 

CoC Conflict of Interest Policy 
CoC Members, including Members of the CoC Board, may not participate in or influence decisions concerning the 

award of a grant or other financial benefits to the organization that Member represents (24 CFR 578.95). Members 
will recuse themselves from such discussions. 

**PLEASE REMEMBER TO SIGN IN**

I. Call to Order

II. Public Comment

III. Additions or
Deletions to the
Agenda

A. Approval of the Agenda
HANDOUT: III.A. CoC Board Agenda December 5 2019

ACTION 

IV. Consent Calendar A. Approve CoC Board Minutes of the October 28, 2019 Regular Meeting
HANDOUT: IV.A. CoC Board Minutes October 28 2019

ACTION 

Item III.A.



V. Presentations A. Census 2020 Efforts
Complete Count Steering Committee will present the Census 2020
implementation plan and general efforts.

HANDOUTS: V.A. Santa Barbara County Implementation Plan 

B. Phase II Community Action Plan to Address Housing and Homelessness
County staff will provide summaries from LeSar Development Consultants’
stakeholder engagement and will outline the next steps.

DISCUSSION 

DISCUSSION 

VI. Funding A. Update on New State Funding Sources
Review summary and timeline of Homeless Housing Assistance and
Prevention Program and consider use of General Rank and Review Policies for
rank and review process.

HANDOUTS: VI.A. HHAP Program Guidance 

B. MOU between the Housing Authority of the County of Santa Barbara,
Department of Social Services, and CoC
Housing Authority of the County of Santa Barbara is applying for Family
Unification Vouchers which requires a Memorandum of Understanding
between the CoC, Department of Social Services, the County Housing
Authority. Recommendation: authorize CoC Chair to execute documents
required for the grant including draft MOU.

HANDOUTS: VI.B. 2019 MOU FUP 

DISCUSSION/
ACTION 

DISCUSSION/
ACTION 

VII. Administrative /
Governance

A. CoC Board Officer Nominations and Elections
CoC Board Officer positions (Chair, Vice Chair, and Secretary) will be elected
for two-year terms by a majority vote of those CoC Board Members present.
For each position, there will be an open nomination process. Motions will be
entertained and voted upon separately for each position.

B. CoC Board and Committee Calendar: 2020
Consider approval of the 2020 CoC calendar for 2020.

HANDOUT: VII.B. 2020 CoC Calendar 

C. Staff Report
The CoC Board will be asked to review the staff report submitted by
Kimberlee Albers.

HANDOUT: VII.C. Staff Report 

D. Quarterly Monitoring Report
Kim Albers will present the CoC quarterly monitoring report for Q2 of 2019.
Kanika Mahajan, HCD Data and Program Analyst, will be available to answer
technical questions regarding data. The board will consider referring any
programs or organizations to the Planning Committee for further discussion or
action.

ACTION 

ACTION 

DISCUSSION 

DISCUSSION 

ADJOURN 



SANTA MARIA/SANTA BARBARA COUNTY CONTINUUM OF CARE 

BOARD MEETING 

Monday, October 28, 2019 
2:00pm-4:00pm 

Santa Maria Public Library | Shepard Hall 
421 S McClelland Street 
Santa Maria, CA 93454 

Call-in Location(s): 
Junior League of Santa Barbara 
229 E. Victoria Street 
Santa Barbara, CA 93101 

MINUTES 

Board Members present 
Emily Allen 
George Chapjian 
Amelia Grover 
Rick Gulino 
Valerie Kissell 
Noel Lossing 
Wayne Mellinger 
John Polanskey 
Colette Schabram 
Kristine Schwarz 
Katherine Soto-Vasquez 
Liz Stotts 
Edwin Weaver 

Alternates Present 
Dinah Lockhart 
Yleana Anda 

Community Members Present 
Anne Barkett 
Nui Bezaire 
Moses Hernandez 
Kris Kuntz 
Frank Quezada 
Mauren Richey 

Community Members Present in Santa 
Barbara 
Skip Szymanski 

Board Members Present in Santa Barbara 
Dan Engel 
Dr. Alice Gleghorn 
Kielle Horton 

County HCD Staff Present 
Kimberlee Albers 
Lucille Boss 
Roc Lowry 

Item IV.A.



I. Call to Order John Polanskey called the meeting to order at 2:13 p.m. 

II. Public Comment N/A 

III. Additions or
Deletions to the
Agenda

A. Approval of the Agenda
a. Request to add discussion and follow-up action regarding two City of Santa

Barbara’s proposed ordinances regarding storage of personal property in public
areas.

1. Valerie Kissell
2. Wayne Mellinger
Request approved with one abstention (Liz Stotts).

b. Agenda with addition.
1. Edwin Weaver
2. Kristine Schwarz
Agenda approved with one abstention (Liz Stotts).

IV. Consent Calendar A. Approve CoC Board Minutes of the September 12, 2019 Regular Meeting
HANDOUT: IV.A. CoC Board Minutes September 12 2019

1. George Chapjian
2. Valerie Kissell
Minutes approved.

V. Funding A. HEAP Update
Roc Lowry, Department Business Specialist for County of Santa Barbara – Housing and
Community Development Division, Community Services Department, presented a general
update on capital projects and spending. CoC Board members discussed community
feedback in response to HEAP projects. Staff reviewed policies for supplemental project
funding in cases where a proposed HEAP project may not be completed.

HANDOUTS: V.A.1 HEAP Funding Summary, V.A.2 General Rank and Review Policy 
for Supplemental Project Funding, V.A.3 Final HEAP Rank and Review Scores  

B. Update on New State Funding Sources
Kimberlee Albers, Homeless Assistance Program Manager for County of Santa Barbara –
Housing and Community Development Division, Community Services Department,
presented materials provided by the Homeless Coordinating and Financing Council (HCFC):
summaries and timelines of Homeless Housing Assistance and Prevention Program and
Permanent Local Housing Allocation. CoC Board members discussed funding priorities for
the Rank and Review panel, which may be determined by eligible activities to be defined by
the State NOFA.

HANDOUTS: V.B.1. HHAP Summary, V.B.2 PLHA Local Summary 

VI. Presentations A. Phase II Community Action Plan to Address Housing and Homelessness
Kimberlee Albers outlined the CoC’s role in the development of Phase II: input and data
from HMIS, PiT Count, CES, planning and assessment, collaborative application to HUD,
oversight, and policies and procedures (written standards). LeSar Development Consultants l
gathered feedback on a work plan, current challenges and impacts, and next steps, with a
focus on strategies passed in September.



VII. A. Addition to Agenda: Discussion and follow-up action regarding two City of Santa 
Barbara’s proposed ordinances regarding storage of personal property in public 
areas.  
On October 22, 2019, the Ordinance Committee of the City of Santa Barbara voted in 
favor of moving an ordinance forward that would make it unlawful to store property in 
public spaces and allow for immediate abatement of personal property. The City Council of 
the City of Santa Barbara has on their agenda for October 29 an ordinance that would 
potentially allow for the personal property of persons experiencing homelessness to be 
removed in order to return shopping carts to store owners. The ordinance does not specify 
what would be done with the personal property that may be contained in the shopping 
carts. CoC Board Members contacted the CoC Lead Agency to add this item to the agenda 
for October 28 as it is time sensitive and could not meet the 72-hour deadline for posting. 
Preventing ordinances that seek to treat persons experiencing homelessness differently than 
persons with homes or preventing ordinances and enforcement that criminalize 
homelessness are part of funding application criteria for homeless assistance. Ordinances 
that criminalize homelessness have resulted in litigation for other communities. Litigation 
can take significant time and effort, diverting staff time away from coordination of services 
and provision of direct services. Vital documents that may be part of confiscated property 
are imperative for the person experiencing homelessness to move through the housing 
process. Confiscating property without due process may violate a person’s constitutional 
rights.  
Members of the CoC Board discussed the pending ordinances and had several questions 
regarding implementation and potential impacts.  
Motion: The CoC Board will request the City Council form an Ad Hoc committee that would 
include members of the City Council, homeless service providers and persons with lived 
experience who would work together quickly to come up with a solution that meets the 
needs of all Santa Barbara constituents. 

1. Valerie Kissell
2. Kristine Schwarz
Motion passes with thirteen (13) in favor, three (3) opposed, and four (4) abstentions.

HANDOUT: Memorandum regarding “Jurisdictions Considering Ordinances 
Impacting Persons Experiencing Homelessness” 

VIII. Administrative /
Governance

B. Coordinated Entry System Policies and Procedures and Release of Information
Proposed Changes
Members of the CoC Board reviewed the summary of proposed written standards updates
and offered amendments. The Board voted to adopt the proposed changes.

1. Emily Allen
2. Liz Stotts
Motion passes.

HANDOUT: VII.A.1 CES P & P, VII.A.2 HMIS ROI, VII.A.3 Summary of Change 
Proposed   

C. Staff Report
The CoC Board reviewed the staff report submitted by Kimberlee Albers and Lucille Boss.
Dan Engel offered an update regarding the Human Trafficking interest group: the group
may focus on Commercial Sexual Exploitation of Children (CSEC).

HANDOUT: VII.B. STAFF REPORT 

D. CoC Board Officer Nominations and Elections



Staff noted CoC Board Officer positions (Chair, Vice Chair, and Secretary) will be elected for 
two-year terms by a majority vote of those CoC Board Members present at the December 
2019 meeting.  

Meeting adjourned at 4:06 p.m. 



Enter the HTC categories (code)  separated by comma(s)  that will be 
reached by the activity from the list below:

Enter the sector categories 
separated by comma(s)  that will 
be reached by the activity, if a 
sector strategy is being used . If not, 
list N/A. 

•	Health
•	Faith-Based
•	Labor
•	Businesses
•	Entertainment
•	Rural
•	Technology and Innovation
•	Education K-12
•	Higher Education

Enter the required languages (per LACAP) supported by this 
activity, separated by comma(s). For example for an event, enter 

languages staffed at the event. If a newsletter, enter the 
languages the newsletter is provided in. 

List additional languages supported 
by the activity that are not required 

per LACAP. 

Enter the estimated number of 
individuals to be reached through 

planned activity. For example: for an 
event enter the estimated number of 

individuals to be reached while tabling 
at event. Or for a calling/text 

campaign, enter the estimated number 
of individuals to be reached.  

Enter the budget dollars estimated for 
this activity including staff and direct 
costs for materials, event fees, travel, 
etc. If activity is provided in-kind, list 
"in-kind" in lieu of a dollar amount. 

This formula divides the total budget 
cost by the estimated number of 

touches to calculate an estimated 
cost per touch for the activity. 

Please add any notes that may 
provide additional insights.

Hard to Count (HTC) categories reached by this 
activity (estimated) Sectors Targeted Languages Supported Additional Languages Estimated # of individuals (to 

be reached) Estimated Budget Cost Estimated Cost per 
individual reached Notes

AA, API Faith-Based Chinese, English, Farsi, Spanish Pashto 6,500 5,000.00$              0.77$                    

CH, SEN Education K-12 Korean, Chinese, English, Spanish French 100 800.00$    8.00$                    

LAT, NAT, PWD Health English, Farsi, Punjabi, Spanish Croatian 1,000 5,000.00$             5.00$                    

LEP, MENA Faith-Based, Rural Chinese, Hmong, English, Spanish Urdu 10,000 5,000.00$             0.50$                    

CH Education0-5 English, Spanish N/A 5,000 -$                      -$                      
First 5 In-kind based on

 activities already provided 
by program 

CH Education 0-5 English, Spanish N/A 2,000 -$                       -$                      
First 5 In-kind based on

 activities already provided 
by program 

CH Education 0-5 English N/A 75 300.00$                4.00$                 Cost for venue
 and materials 

CH Education0-5 English N/A 75 300.00$                4.00$                    

This would include FRC's,
 Oral Health Initiative etc. 

Include cost for venue and 
materials  

CH Education 0-5 English, Spanish N/A 300 200.00$                0.67$                    Brochure & 
collatoral needed 

Item V.A.



CH Education 0-5 English,Spanish N/A 250 200.00$                 0.80$                    Brochure &
 collatoral needed 

CH Education 0-5 English/Spanish N/A 200 100.00$                0.50$                    Handouts and collatoral

CH Education 0-5 English, Spanish N/A 200 100.00$                0.50$                     Handouts and collatoral

CH Educaiton 0-5 English, Spanish N/A 200 100.00$                0.50$                    Handouts and collatoral

CH Education 0-5 English/Spanish N/A 200 100.00$                0.50$                    Handouts and collatoral

CH Education0-5, Education K-12 English, Spanish Mixtex 500 500.00$             1.00$                    Brochure & collatoral needed 

CH Education 0-5, Health English, Spanish Mixtex 1200 500.00$                0.42$                    Brochure & collateral needed 

CH Education 0-5 English, Spanish N/A 8000 40,000.00$                5.00$                    
Children's Books,

 Flyer, Poster, other 
Collateral

CH, FW, HIF, LEP, IR,LAT,LGBTQ,OTH,PWD, AA Education 0-5, Health English, Spanish N/A 35 50.00$                  1.43$                    

CH, FW, HIF, LEP, IR,LAT,LGBTQ,OTH,AA Education, 0-5-, K-12  Spanish N/A 600 200.00$                0.33$                    

CH, FW, HIF, LEP, IR,LAT,LGBTQ,OTH, AA,MENA,PWD Education, 0-5-, K-12  Spanish N/A 300 100.00$    0.33$                     

CH, FW, HIF, LEP, IR,LAT,LGBTQ,OTH, AA,MENA,PWD Education, 0-5-, K-12 Spanish N/A 700 300.00$                0.43$        

CH, FW, HIF, LEP, IR,LAT,LGBTQ,OTH, AA,MENA,PWD Education,0-5,K-12 Spanish N/A 35 100.00$                2.86$                    



CH Education 0-5 English, Spanish N/A 2500 800.00$                0.32$        hures, Posters& Collateral nee

#DIV/0!

IR, LAT Health, Labor, Latino, Business, 
Rural, Education K-12 Spanish Mixteco 50,000 20,000.00$                0.40$                    

IR, LAT Health, Labor, Latino, Business, 
Rural, Education K-12 Spanish 25 500.00$             20.00$                  Shirts will be made in 

Spanish

IR, LAT

Health, Labor, Latino 
Businesses, Rural, Education K-

12 Spanish Mixteco 50,000 1.00$                    0.00$                    

Spanish 25 1,000.00$                40.00$                  Training will be conducted 
in Spanish

IR, LAT

Health, Labor, Latino 
Businesses, Rural, Education K-

12 English, Spanish Mixteco 9,000 27,000.00$                3.00$                    erials will be provided in Englis

#DIV/0!

HIF Housing, Family Resource 
Centers English, Spanish 1800 -$                      

Only cost(s): associated 
with printed materials to be 
added to pre-assembled 

care packs



CH, IR, LAT,LGBTQ, LEP, PWD, HIF, SEN, VET, OTH Housing, Family Resource 
Centers English, Spanish #DIV/0!

CH, IR, LAT,LGBTQ, LEP, PWD, HIF, SEN, VET, OTH Housing, Family Resource 
Centers English, Spanish #DIV/0!

CH, IR, LAT,LGBTQ, LEP, PWD, HIF, SEN, VET, OTH Housing, Family Resource 
Centers English, Spanish #DIV/0!

AA,LP,CH,LEP,LAT,LBGT,PWD,SEN,VET,HF N/A English, Spanish 10,000 $5,800 0.58$                    

#DIV/0!

AA, LB, API, CH, FW, HIF, LEP, IR, LAT, LGBTQ, MENA, NAT, OTH, 
PWD, SEN, VET

Health, Faith-Based, Labor, 
Business, Rural, Technology 

and Innovation, Education K-
12, Higher Education

English, Spanish Mixteco 223,074.00$             #DIV/0!

AA, LB, API, CH, FW, HIF, LEP, IR, LAT, LGBTQ, MENA, NAT, OTH, 
PWD, SEN, VET

Health, Faith-Based, Labor, 
Business, Rural, Technology 

and Innovation, Education K-
12, Higher Education

English, Spanish Mixteco 78,075.90$                #DIV/0!

AA, LB, API, CH, FW, HIF, LEP, IR, LAT, LGBTQ, MENA, NAT, OTH, 
PWD, SEN, VET

Health, Faith-Based, Labor, 
Business, Rural, Technology 

and Innovation, Education K-
12, Higher Education

English, Spanish Mixteco 412,686.90$              #DIV/0!

LB, CH, FW, HF, LEP, IR, LAT, LGBTQ, NAT, PWD, SEN, VET

Health, Faith-Based, Labor, 
Business, Rural, Technology 

and Innovation, Education K-
12, Higher Education

English, Spanish Mixteco 25,000.00$              #DIV/0!

LB, CH, FW, HF, LEP, IR, LAT, LGBTQ, NAT, PWD, SEN, VET

Health, Faith-Based, Labor, 
Business, Rural, Technology 

and Innovation, Education K-
12, Higher Education

English, Spanish Mixteco 2,000.00$              #DIV/0!

OTH Funders and Nonprofits English #DIV/0!

#DIV/0!

LB, HIF, LAT, SEN Rural, Education K-12
English, Spanish 10000 1,000.00$               0.10$                 

LB, HIF, LAT, SEN Rural, Education K-12
English, Spanish 10000 1,000.00$               0.10$                    

LB, HIF, LAT, SEN Rural, Education K-12
English, Spanish 10000 1,000.00$                  0.10$                     



AA, API, HIF, LAT, LGBTQ, OTH, PWD, SEN

Rural English 5000 500.00$                 0.10$        

CH, LEP, AA, API, HIF, LAT, LGBTQ, OTH, PWD, SEN

Health English 150 500.00$                3.33$                     

FW, LEP, IR, LAT, SEN

N/A English, Spanish 1000 5,200.00$              5.20$                    

LB, CH, LEP, AA, API, HIF, LAT, LGBTQ, OTH, PWD, SEN N/A English, Spanish 1000 2,500.00$             2.50$                    

CH, LEP, AA, API, HIF, LAT, LGBTQ, OTH, PWD, SEN Health English 75 500.00$                6.67$        

CH, SEN,LAT,VET,OTH,LB,

Health, Education K-12, Higher 
Education, Labor, Rural, Senior

Spanish, English 44236 17,000.00$                0.38$                    

CH, SEN,LAT,VET,OTH,LB,

Health, Education K-12, Higher 
Education, Labor, Rural, Senior

Spanish, English Over 154 languages 
supported at call center 2400 3,000.00$                1.25$                    

CH, SEN,LAT,VET,OTH,LB,

Health, Education K-12, Higher 
Education, Labor, Rural, Senior

Spanish, English Mixteco 1000 10,650.00$                10.65$                   



CH, SEN,LAT,VET,OTH,LB,

Health, Education K-12, Higher 
Education, Labor, Rural, Senior

Spanish, English 3000 500.00$                 0.17$                    

AA, LB, HIF, LEP, LAT, SEN, VET Health, Rural

Spanish, English 600 1,500.00$              2.50$                     

AA, LB, HIF, LEP, LAT, SEN, VET Health, Rural

Spanish, English 500 300.00$                0.60$                    

CH, FW, HIF, LEP, IR,LAT,LGBTQ,OTH,PWD, AA

Education 0-5, Health

English, Spanish 35 50.00$                  1.43$                    

CH, FW, HIF, LEP, IR,LAT,LGBTQ,OTH,AA Education, 0-5, K-12

Spanish 600 200.00$             0.33$                    

CH, FW,  HIF,  LEP,  IR, LAT, LGBTQ, OTH, AA, MENA,    PWD Education, 0-5, K-12
Spanish 300 100.00$                0.33$                    

CH, FW, HIF, LEP, IR,LAT,LGBTQ,OTH, AA, MENA, PWD Education, 0-5, K-12
Spanish 700 300.00$    0.43$                    

CH, FW, HIF, LEP, IR, LAT, LGBTQ, OTH, AA, MENA, PWD Education, 0-5, K-12

Spanish 35 100.00$                2.86$                    

CH, IR, LAT, LEP, OTH
Education, 0-5, K-12, Labor, 

Higher Education spanish
150 200.00$                1.33$                    

CH, IR, LAT, LEP, OTH
Education, 0-5, K-12, Labor, 

Higher Educaiton spanish
150 200.00$                1.33$                    

CH, IR, LAT, LEP, OTH
Education, 0-5, K-12, Labor, 

Higher Educaiton spanish
600 600.00$                1.00$                    

CH, IR, LAT, LEP, OTH
Education, 0-5, K-12, Labor, 

Higher Educaiton spanish
200 2,000.00$                10.00$                  

CH, IR, LAT, LEP, OTH
Education, 0-5, K-12, Labor, 

Higher Educaiton spanish
100 200.00$                2.00$                    

CH, IR, LAT, LEP, OTH
Education, 0-5, K-12, Labor, 

Higher Educaiton spanish
250 200.00$                0.80$                    

CH, IR, LAT, LEP, OTH
Education, 0-5, K-12, Labor, 

Higher Educaiton spanish
500 100.00$                0.20$                    



CH, IR, LAT, LEP, OTH
Education, 0-5, K-12, Labor, 

Higher Educaiton spanish
100 1,000.00$               10.00$                  

#DIV/0!

LB,FW, LEP, IR, LGBTQ, OTH, PWD, SEN, VET Enterntainment English, Spanish Mixteco 108,000 65,000.00$              0.60$                     

Spanish rado and TV are 
among the best media to 

reach and educate 
Spanish-speaking residents 

LB,FW, LEP, IR, LGBTQ, OTH, PWD, SEN, VET Technology and Innovation English, Spansh 108,000
 City absorbs cost of staff 

time to write and post social 
media  

LB,FW, LEP, IR, LGBTQ, OTH, PWD, SEN, VET Technology and Innovation English, Spanish 108,000 20,000.00$                0.19$                    

Budget includes iPads and 
pay 19 hour bilingual 

workers time and mileage 
to drive to farms within the 

City to educate employees 
about the Census. City 

absorbs cost of staff time to 
manage website

LB,FW, LEP, IR, LGBTQ, OTH, PWD, SEN, VET Government English, Spanish 20000 10,500.00$                0.53$                    

LB,FW, LEP, IR, LGBTQ, OTH, PWD, SEN, VET Education, Entertainment English, Spanish 30000 35,000.00$                1.17$                    

Cost is to pay hired 19-
hour/week workers at 

$20/hour to staff four tables 
to educate residents. Also, 

buy them cell phones 
and/or iPads with data 

plans for the work so they 
can answer questions and 

register people.

LB,FW, LEP, IR, LGBTQ, OTH, PWD, SEN, VET
Health, Faith-based, labor, 
business, Education, Higher 

Education
English, Spanish Mixtec 20000 10,000.00$                0.50$                     Brochures, posters, fliers

LB,FW, LEP, IR, LGBTQ, OTH, PWD, SEN, VET
Health, Faith-based, labor, 
business, Education, Higher 

Education
English, Spanish Mixtec 20000 10,000.00$                0.50$                    Brochures, posters, fliers



LB,FW, LEP, IR, LGBTQ, OTH, PWD, SEN, VET Government English, Spanish 108000 11,000.00$                0.10$                    

City buses SMAT plus BREEZE 
carry about 61,000 

passengers per month. 
About $2,000 per month for 

utility bills x 5 months 
(November through 

Marcha). $1,000 for posters 
for all buses and transit 

centers 

AA, LB, API, FW, HIF, LEP, PWD, LAT, IR, LGBTQ, MENA, NAT, SEN, 
VET

N/A English, Spanish 500 1,000.00$              2.00$                     

AA, LB, API, FW, HIF, LEP, PWD, LAT, IR, LGBTQ, MENA, NAT, SEN, 
VET

N/A English, Spanish 3,000.00$              #DIV/0!

AA, LB, API, FW, HIF, LEP, PWD, LAT, IR, LGBTQ, MENA, NAT, SEN, 
VET

N/A English, Spanish 15000 300.00$    0.02$                    

AA, API, LEP, LAT, LGBTQ, MENA, NAT Government English, Spanish 3000 120.00$                0.04$                    

AA, LB, API, FW, LEP, PWD, LAT, LGBTQ, MENA, NAT, SEN, VET Government English, Spanish 5400 100.00$             0.02$                    

CH, FW, LEP Government English 1000 800.00$             0.80$                    

VET Government English 2000 800.00$                0.40$                    

SEN Government English 500 800.00$                1.60$                     

CH, FW, IR, SEN, VET Government English 1000 800.00$                0.80$                    

AA, API, FW, HIF, LEP, IR, LAT, LGBTQ, MENA, NAT, OTH, PWD, SEN, 
VET N/A English, Spanish 600 2,000.00$                  3.33$                    

AA, API, FW, HIF, LEP, IR, LAT, LGBTQ, MENA, NAT, OTH, PWD, SEN, 
VET N/A English, Spanish 6000 2,000.00$                  0.33$                    

AA, API, FW, HIF, LEP, IR, LAT, LGBTQ, MENA, NAT, OTH, PWD, SEN, 
VET N/A English 40 800.00$                20.00$                  

AA, API, FW, HIF, LEP, IR, LAT, LGBTQ, MENA, NAT, OTH, PWD, SEN, 
VET N/A English, Spanish 100 800.00$                8.00$                    

AA, API, FW, HIF, LEP, IR, LAT, LGBTQ, MENA, NAT, OTH, PWD, SEN, 
VET N/A English, Spanish 70 800.00$                11.43$                   

AA, API, CN, LEP,LAT, LGBTQ,MENA, NAT, OTH, PWD Government English, Spanish 400 800.00$    2.00$                    2 staff



AA, API, CN, LEP,LAT, LGBTQ,MENA, NAT, OTH, PWD Government English, Spanish 400 800.00$                2.00$                    2 staff

AA, API, CN, LEP,LAT, LGBTQ,MENA, NAT, OTH, PWD Government English, Spanish 300 800.00$                2.67$                    2 staff

AA, API, CN, LEP,LAT, LGBTQ,MENA, NAT, OTH, PWD Government English, Spanish 3000 800.00$    0.27$                    2 staff

AA, API, CN, LEP,LAT, LGBTQ,MENA, NAT, OTH, PWD Government English, Spanish 22900 -$                       

AA, API, CN, LEP,LAT, LGBTQ,MENA, NAT, OTH, PWD Government English, Spanish 35,600 3,000.00$             0.08$                    

AA, API, CN, LEP,LAT, LGBTQ,MENA, NAT, OTH, PWD Government English, Spanish 13000 1,000.00$             0.08$                    

AA, API, CN, LEP,LAT, LGBTQ,MENA, NAT, OTH, PWD Government English, Spanish 11500 1,000.00$                0.09$                    

LAT, IR, OTH Higher Education English, Spanish Chinese 10000 4,000.00$               0.40$                    

LAT, IR, OTH Higher Education English, Spanish Chinese 23000 5,000.00$             0.22$                     



Homeless Housing, Assistance, and Prevention Program (HHAP) – Program Guidance      1 
https://www.bcsh.ca.gov/hcfc 

HOMELESS HOUSING, ASSISTANCE  
AND PREVENTION PROGRAM (HHAP) 

PROGRAM GUIDANCE 

Gavin Newsom, Governor 

Secretary Alexis Podesta, Council Chair 

October 29, 2019 

Item VI.A.

https://www.bcsh.ca.gov/hcfc
https://www.bcsh.ca.gov/hcfc


Homeless Housing, Assistance, and Prevention Program (HHAP) – Program Guidance      2 
https://www.bcsh.ca.gov/hcfc 

Homeless Housing, Assistance, and Prevention Program (HHAP) 

Program Guidance – October 2019 

The California Homeless Coordinating and Financing Council (HCFC) is pleased to announce 
the Homeless Housing, Assistance, and Prevention Program (HHAP) funding. HHAP program 
is a block grant program designed to provide jurisdictions with one-time grant funds to support 
regional coordination and expand or develop local capacity to address their immediate 
homelessness challenges. Spending must be informed by a best-practices framework focused 
on moving homeless individuals and families into permanent housing and supporting the efforts 
of those individuals and families to maintain their permanent housing. HHAP grant program is 
authorized by AB101 (Chapter 159, Statutes of 2019), which was signed into law by Governor 
Gavin Newsom on July 31, 2019. This document provides an overview of the HHAP grant 
program, including timelines with key milestones and program deliverables. 

Available Funding 

HHAP funding is divided into three categories for distribution. 

Eligible 
Applicant 

Funded 
Amount 

Funding 
Determination 

Continuum of Care (CoC) 
[Part 1 of Division 31 of the HSC § 50218 
(a)(1)]

$190,000,000 Based on each CoCs proportionate share of the 
state’s total homeless population based on the 
homeless point-in time count. 

City/City that is also a County, with a 
population of 300,000 or more, as of 
January 1, 2019. 
[Part 1 of Division 31 of the HSC § 50218 
(a)(2)]

$275,000,000 Based on the city’s proportionate share of the total 
homeless population of the region served by the 
CoC within which the city is located, based on the 
homeless point-in time count. 

County 
[Part 1 of Division 31 of the HSC § 50218 
(a)(3)]

$175,000,000 Based on the county’s proportionate share of the 
total homeless population of region served by the 
CoC within which the county is located, based on 
the  homeless point-in time count. 

Eligible Applicants 

Eligible applicants who may apply for HHAP program funds are the CoC, as identified by the 
United States Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD), large cities (with a 
population of 300,000 or more), and counties. Successful applicants will be awarded HHAP 
program funds after entering into a contract with the Business, Consumer Services, and Housing 
Agency (BCSH). The eligible applicants will administer their own funds separately; however, 
they are expected to demonstrate regional coordination as outlined in the HHAP program 
guidance. One of the threshold requirements is that eligible applicants must submit a plan 
specifying alignment of funds and goals, strategies, and services, both short-term and long-term, 
to reduce homelessness and make it non-recurring.   

For allocations made to the large cities and the counties, those cities and counties are the 
administrative entity.  For allocations made directly to a CoC, the administrative entity means a 
unit of general-purpose local government (city, county or a city that is also a county), a Joint 
Powers Authority (JPA), or a nonprofit organization that has (1) previously administered federal 
Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) CoC funds as the collaborative applicant 

https://www.bcsh.ca.gov/hcfc


 

Homeless Housing, Assistance, and Prevention Program (HHAP) – Program Guidance         3 
https://www.bcsh.ca.gov/hcfc 
 
 

pursuant to Section 578.3 of Title 24 of the Code of Federal Regulations, and (2) been 
designated by the CoC to administer program funds. For this application, CoC and administrative 
entity are used interchangeably.  
 
Eligible Uses 

The HHAP program requires grantees to expend funds on evidence-based solutions that 
address and prevent homelessness among eligible populations. As stated in Health and Safety 
Code (HSC) § 50219(c)(1-8), eligible uses may include but are not limited to:  

(1) Rental assistance and rapid rehousing; 
(2) Operating subsidies in new and existing affordable or supportive housing units, 

emergency shelters, and navigation centers. Operating subsidies may include 
operating reserves; 

(3) Landlord Incentives (including, but not limited to, security deposits and holding fees); 
(4) Outreach and coordination (which may include access to job programs) to assist 

vulnerable populations in accessing permanent housing stability in supportive 
housing; 

(5) Systems support for activities necessary to create regional partnerships and maintain 
a homeless services and housing delivery system; 

(6) Delivery of permanent housing and innovative housing solutions (such as hotel and 
motel conversions); 

(7) Prevention and shelter diversion to permanent housing; and 
(8) New navigation centers and emergency shelters based on demonstrated need. 

Demonstrated need for new navigation centers and emergency shelters shall be 
based on the following:  
(a) The number of available shelter beds in the jurisdiction; 
(b) The shelter vacancy rate in the summer and winter months; 
(c) The percentage of exits from emergency shelters to permanent housing solutions; 

and  
(d) A plan to connect residents to permanent housing. 

 
In addition, HSC § 50218(b) states that grantees are required to use at least 8 percent of the 
program allocation for services that meet the specific needs for homeless youth populations. 

Additional Eligible and Ineligible Uses 

HHAP program statute has additional mandates on eligible and ineligible uses of program funds. 
HSC § 50219(d) and (e): 
  

(1) Eligible applicants may use up to 5 percent of their program allocation on: 
(a) Strategic homelessness plan, as defined in section 578.7(c) of Title 24 of the Code 

of Federal Regulations (CFR); and/or 
(b) For infrastructure development to support coordinated entry systems and 

Homeless Management Information Systems (HMIS).  
(2) Eligible applicants shall not use more than 7 percent of their program allocation for 

administrative costs incurred by the city, county, or CoC to administer its program 
allocation. This does not include staff costs or other costs directly related to 
implementing or carrying out activities funded by the program allocation. 

 

https://www.bcsh.ca.gov/hcfc


Homeless Housing, Assistance, and Prevention Program (HHAP) – Program Guidance      4 
https://www.bcsh.ca.gov/hcfc 

In addition, HSC § 50218(a)(5) states that program recipients shall not use HHAP program 
funding to supplant existing local funds for homeless housing, assistance, or prevention. The 
intent of HHAP program funds is to expand or increase services and housing capacity. HHAP 
funds cannot replace local funds that are committed to an existing or developing homeless 
assistance program. However, if funds previously supporting a service or project end or are 
reduced for reasons beyond the control of the grantee and services or housing capacity will be 
lost as a result of these funds ending, HHAP program funds may be used to maintain the service 
or program and are not considered supplanting. Examples include, but are not limited to, a time-
limited city and/or county tax or one-time block grant, such as HEAP. 

Reimbursement 

HHAP program funds should not generally be obligated or expended prior to the effective date 
of the standard agreement. However, Agency acknowledges there may be circumstances in 
which reimbursement is necessary to prevent or address homelessness in a given jurisdiction. 
When considering a reimbursement, the following requirements must be adhered to: 

(1) Reimbursement is not permitted for activities occurring prior to July 1, 2019.
(2) Reimbursement shall not supplant existing local funds for homeless housing,

assistance, or prevention.
(3) Approval from HCFC must be obtained prior to authorizing reimbursement.
(4) Capital improvement projects pertaining to emergency shelters and navigation centers

are still required to demonstrate need. Eligible applicants are required to submit the
following information for HCFC to review and approve or deny such projects:
(a) The number of available shelter beds in the jurisdiction;
(b) The shelter vacancy rate in the summer and winter months;
(c) The percentage of exits from emergency shelters to permanent housing

solutions; and
(d) A plan to connect residents to permanent housing.

Pre-Application Notices 

Point-In-Time (PIT) Count 

HSC § 50216(j) states that a jurisdiction may elect to use their 2017 PIT count, instead of their 
2019 PIT count, if they can demonstrate all of the following: 

(1) That a significant methodology change occurred between the 2017 and 2019 PIT
counts;

(2) That the significant change in methodology was based on an attempt to more closely
align the count with HUD best practices; and,

(3) That the change was undertaken in consultation with HUD representatives.

To expedite the release of the HHAP NOFA and application, HCFC is requesting eligible 
applicants who want to elect to use their 2017 PIT count, instead of their 2019 PIT count to  
determine their HHAP allocation, submit their request and supporting documentation on the  
forms provided by HCFC, on or before November 1, 2019. However, requests will be accepted 
until midnight on the day HUD releases the 2019 PIT count. Agency shall review and approve 
or deny all requests. The notice and forms can be found on the HCFC web-site at 
www.bcsh.ca.gov/hcfc. 

https://www.bcsh.ca.gov/hcfc
http://www.bcsh.ca.gov/hcfc
http://www.bcsh.ca.gov/hcfc


Homeless Housing, Assistance, and Prevention Program (HHAP) – Program Guidance      5 
https://www.bcsh.ca.gov/hcfc 

Redirection of Funds 

HCFC acknowledges there may be jurisdictions who want to redirect their HHAP program 
allocation to their partnering CoC, large city (if applicable), or county. Therefore, eligible 
applicants will be allowed to redirect their HHAP program allocation to the CoC, large city (if 
applicable), or county that serves the same region it is connected to in lieu of directly applying 
for their program allocation. The following requirements must be adhered to when redirecting 
funds: 

(1) The jurisdiction must redirect their entire HHAP program allocation to a single CoC,
large city (if applicable), or county that serves the same region.

(2) Redirected funds shall be used in the jurisdiction entitled to the funds or to provide
regional housing or services that serve the population living in the jurisdiction entitled
to the funds.

(3) The eligible applicant receiving funds must clearly identify the intended use of the
redirected funds in their program application.

(4) The eligible applicant receiving funds must comply with the expenditure deadlines as
stated in HSC § 50220(a-e).  For example, if a large city receives funds from a county,
the entire county program allocation must be contractually obligated by May 31, 2023.
Funds not contractually obligated by this date would then revert to the CoC serving
that region.

(5) Eligible applicants who are giving and receiving the program allocation will also need
to submit a binding resolution or agreement that redirects the funds from one entity to
the other and is signed by both jurisdictions. Evidence of such an agreement/
resolution must be submitted by midnight on February 15, 2020.

HCFC is requesting any eligible applicants wishing to redirect their program allocation in this 
way to submit their intent to do so by November 1, 2019. Eligible applicants can decide to redirect 
funds up until February 15, 2020, when applications are due. Submitting an intent to redirect 
funds does not obligate the eligible applicant to redirect funds. However, once an application 
that includes redirected funds is submitted, changes cannot be made. The Intent to Redirect 
Program Allocation form that must be completed can be found at www.bcsh.ca.gov/hcfc. 

Expenditure Deadlines 

HHAP program funds must be fully expended by June 30, 2025, as stated in HSC § 50220(e). 
Funds not fully expended by this date must be returned to Agency and will revert to the General 
Fund. Obligation and expenditure deadlines for grantees are as follows: 

Counties:  Counties must contractually obligate their full program allocation on or before May 
31, 2023. Any funds that are not contractually obligated by this date shall be reverted to the CoC 
that serves the county [HSC § 50220(a)(4)(A)(ii)]. Specific to Los Angeles County, funds that are 
not contractually obligated by this date shall be divided proportionately using the HHAP funding 
allocation formula among the four CoC’s that serve Los Angeles County:  City of Glendale CoC, 
City of Pasadena CoC, the City of Long Beach CoC, and the Los Angeles Homeless Services 
Authority. 

Counties not obligating their full program allocation by this date are required to notify Agency on 
or before May 31, 2023, of the name of the CoC(s) in which the county is served by, and the 

https://www.bcsh.ca.gov/hcfc
http://www.bcsh.ca.gov/hcfc
http://www.bcsh.ca.gov/hcfc


Homeless Housing, Assistance, and Prevention Program (HHAP) – Program Guidance      6 
https://www.bcsh.ca.gov/hcfc 

amount of program funds that will be reverted to the CoC(s). By June 30, 2023, the county shall 
provide Agency with evidence that the funds were transferred and submit an updated budget 
that clearly identifies the funds that were transferred. 

Example:  
As of May 31, 2023, a county grantee only contractually obligated 40% of their program 
allocation.   

Date Description 
May 31, 2023 The county must notify Agency on or before May 31, 2023, of the name of the CoC(s) 

in which the county is served by, and the amount of program funds that will be reverted 
to the CoC(s). 

June 30, 2023 The county shall provide Agency with evidence that the funds were transferred and 
submit an updated budget that clearly identifies the funds that were transferred. 

CoCs and large cities:  CoCs and large cities must contractually obligate no less than 50% of 
program allocations on or before May 31, 2023. If less than 50% of program funds have been 
contractually obligated after May 31, 2023, the grantee shall not obligate or expend the 
difference of remaining funds within the 50% required obligation amount until the following 
occurs [HSC § 50220(a)(4)(B)(i-ii)]: 

(1) On or before June 30, 2023, the grantee must submit an alternative disbursement plan
that includes an explanation for the delay and a plan to fully expend these funds by
December 31, 2023. The grantee must submit an updated budget.

(2) Agency must approve this alternative disbursement plan and will have until July 31,
2023 to review and approve or deny submitted plans.
If the funds identified in the approved alternative disbursement plan are not fully
expended by December 31, 2023, the funds shall be returned to Agency.

Example:  
As of May 31, 2023, a CoC or large city grantee only contractually obligated 40% of their program 
allocation.   

Date Description 

May 31, 2023 40% contractually obligated, 10% not obligated. 

June 30, 2023 Submit an alternative disbursement plan to fully expend the 10% that was not contractually 
obligated by December 31, 2023. 

July 31, 2023 Agency to review and approve or deny disbursement plans. 
December 31, 2023 Remaining 10% of program funds not fully expended by this date shall be returned to 

Agency. 

Pre-Application Program Timeline 

Beginning in October, the HHAP program team will begin the distribution of key program 
information and documents. These pre-application materials will help inform the local 
collaborative process and assist stakeholders as they plan their applications.  

https://www.bcsh.ca.gov/hcfc


Homeless Housing, Assistance, and Prevention Program (HHAP) – Program Guidance      7 
https://www.bcsh.ca.gov/hcfc 

Date Document Description 
October 2019 Program Guidance The guidance document includes program details, application 

information, and program timelines. 
October 2019- 
Ongoing 

Technical Assistance Outreach and technical assistance will be conducted by the 
HHAP team. 

November 2019 Application Map and 
Instructions 

An application map and instructions will be released in 
advance of the HHAP program Notice of Funding Availability 
(NOFA). The map will walk the applicant thru the application 
process and the information needed to complete the 
application. 

November 2019 HHAP Application 
Checklist Tool 

The tool is to assist eligible applicants in completing the 
application narrative.  It will also serve as the review tool for 
the HHAP team when reviewing applications. 

November 1, 2019 Submit request to use 
2017 PIT count 

Target date for eligible applicants to submit their request and 
justification to use their 2017 PIT count for their program 
allocation, though applicants have until midnight on the day 
HUD officially publishes the 2019 PIT county to submit the 
request 

November 1, 2019 Submit intent to redirect 
HHAP program 
allocation 

Target date for eligible applicants to notify HCFC of their 
interest in redirecting their program allocation and not apply 
directly for their HHAP program allocation, though applicants 
have until February 15, 2020 to decide  

December 2019 Frequently Asked 
Questions (FAQs) and 
Additional Resources  

This document will include additional information and details 
about the program.  

Application Timeline 

HHAP applications will be accepted immediately upon release of the NOFA. Applications must 
be submitted and received by Agency no later than midnight on February 15, 2020.  Agency will 
award all HHAP program funds by April 1, 2020. Any funds not applied for and awarded by this 
date will be released for a second round NOFA on a date to be determined by Agency.  If after 
the second round of awards, not all funds have been claimed by all administrative entities, 
Agency shall work with the Department of Finance to determine if any unallocated funds should 
revert to the General Fund. 

Date Document Description 
Expected in November 
or December 2019 

2019 PIT count 
published 

HUD publishes the official 2019 PIT count data. 

Expected in November or 
December 2019 

Final date to submit 
request to use 2017 
PIT count 

Requests to use the 2017 PIT count must be submitted by 
midnight on the day HUD officially publishes the 2019 PIT 
count. 

Release of the 2019 PIT 
count + 5 business days 

HHAP program 
allocations 
published 

Agency will publish the program allocations for each eligible 
applicant and identify if jurisdictions are using the 2017 or 
2019 PIT count. 

Release of the 2019 PIT 
count + 10 business days 

NOFA and 
Application 
released 

Agency will release the NOFA and application 10 business 
days after the 2019 PIT count is released by HUD. 

February 15, 2020 Final date to submit 
applications 

Applications must be submitted by midnight on this date. 
Applications can be submitted immediately after the NOFA is 
opened and will be reviewed as they are received.  

April 1, 2020 Final date to make 
awards  

Agency will make awards on a rolling basis; however, all 
awards will be made by this date. 

https://www.bcsh.ca.gov/hcfc


Homeless Housing, Assistance, and Prevention Program (HHAP) – Program Guidance      8 
https://www.bcsh.ca.gov/hcfc 

Application Process 

The HHAP application will be available through on online portal. The application portal will open 
the same day the NOFA is released. The application does not have a “save” feature and must 
be completed and submitted in one sitting. Once the application is successfully submitted, the 
applicant will receive a confirmation email that includes a copy of the application, a tracking 
number, and a checklist of documents to be submitted to HCFC.  The applicant must reply to 
the email and attach all items listed on the checklist.  The application will then be reviewed by 
HHAP program staff.  The eligible applicant will be notified by HHAP program staff if the 
application is deemed complete or incomplete, along with next steps. Forms can be found on 
the HCFC web-site at www.bcsh.ca.gov/hcfc. 

Application Required Documents 

HHAP program funds are intended to support regional coordination and expand or develop local 
capacity to assist local jurisdictions in addressing their immediate homelessness challenges. 
Spending must be informed by a best-practices framework focused on moving homeless 
individuals and families into permanent housing and supporting the efforts of those individuals 
and families to maintain their permanent housing. Eligible applicants are required to submit a 
summary of how they will meet the requirements outlined in HSC § 50219(a)(1-9).  HCFC will 
provide an application narrative template that applicants must use and submit as part of the 
application process. A checklist tool will also be made available to assist eligible applicants in 
successfully applying for their HHAP program funds. The application narrative includes the 
following: 

(1) Summary of Homelessness in the CoC, large city, or county:  Eligible
applicants shall use the HUD Longitudinal System Assessment (LSA) and
provide a summary of the data on demographics and characteristics of the
homeless populations in the jurisdiction. CoCs shall make the LSA available
to the large cities and counties. All applicants must submit an electronic copy
of their Longitudinal System Assessment (LSA) to HCFC. Large city and
county applicants may also include additional information and data that is
specific to the region they represent.

(2) Demonstration of regional coordination:
a. Coordinated entry:

i. For applicants that are CoCs, describe how the Coordinated Entry
System (CES) currently functions. Include the entity responsible for
operating the CES, additional procedures or processes developed to
make all persons experiencing homelessness aware of the
assessment and referral process to access available housing,
including outreach to persons who may experience barriers to
accessing the assessment and referral system.  Clearly identify
barriers or challenges to the CES and plans to address these
barriers.

ii. For applicants that are large cities or counties, describe how the
applicant interfaces with the CES. Clearly identify barriers or
challenges to the coordinated system and plans to address these
barriers.

https://www.bcsh.ca.gov/hcfc
http://www.bcsh.ca.gov/hcfc
http://www.bcsh.ca.gov/hcfc
https://www.hudexchange.info/homelessness-assistance/lsa/
https://www.hudexchange.info/homelessness-assistance/lsa/


Homeless Housing, Assistance, and Prevention Program (HHAP) – Program Guidance      9 
https://www.bcsh.ca.gov/hcfc 

b. Applicants must describe their prioritization criteria and how CES, pursuant
to 24 CFR 578.7(a)(8), is used for this process. HHAP funded projects shall
align and comply with the core components of Housing First as defined in
Welfare and Institutions Code § 8255(b).

c. Applicants must describe how they have coordinated with their partnering
CoC, large city (if applicable), and/or county to identify their share of the
regional need to address homelessness, and how the requested funds will
help meet the jurisdiction’s share of that need.

d. Applicants must outline how they are involved in efforts to create
sustainable, long-term housing solutions for people experiencing
homelessness or at risk of homelessness. This may include connecting to
and supporting the CoC, communicating and working along-side agencies
responsible for city planning and zoning, working more effectively with
housing developers and financial and legal service providers, fostering
strong community partnerships, and developing or strengthening data and
information sharing.

(3) Resources Addressing Homelessness: Applicants must describe their
existing programs and resources to address homelessness, and how those
resources are integrated or coordinated with applicants from overlapping
jurisdictions (i.e. CoC, large city, and/or county).

(4) Partners Addressing Homelessness: Describe partners who are or will be
working with the applicant on identified HHAP projects. If projects and/or
partners have not been identified at the time of application, describe the
process to include partners. Collaborative partners, at a minimum, should
include representatives of local homeless service providers, homeless youth
programs, law enforcement, behavioral health, county welfare departments,
city and county public officials, educators, workforce development, community
clinics, health care providers, public housing authorities, and people with lived
experience. If there are barriers, such as lack of key stakeholder entities,
please explain and include a plan to address identified barriers.

(5) Funding to Address Homelessness: Applicants must include a detailed
annual budget that includes all funds currently being used by the applicant to
provide housing and homeless services for the homeless populations in their
jurisdiction, including all federal, state, and local funds. Where applicable,
identify Homeless Emergency Aid Program (HEAP), California Emergency
Solutions and Housing (CESH), No Place Like Home (NPLH), and CalWORKS
Housing Support Program (HSP) funds. Provide information on the programs
supported by the funds identified in the detailed budget and how HHAP
program funds will complement these identified funds.

(6) Solutions to Address Homelessness: Overview of the planning efforts to address
homelessness. For applicants that submitted a strategic plan for CESH  funding,
identify the measurable goals from that strategic plan and how HHAP funding will
directly impact those goals. For applicants that do not have a strategic plan or did
not use CESH to develop a plan, identify measurable goals that HHAP will be
expected to achieve. Agency may ask for additional justifications for identified goals.

https://www.bcsh.ca.gov/hcfc
https://www.bcsh.ca.gov/hcfc/aid_program.html
https://www.bcsh.ca.gov/hcfc/aid_program.html
http://hcd.ca.gov/grants-funding/active-funding/cesh.shtml
http://hcd.ca.gov/grants-funding/active-funding/cesh.shtml
http://hcd.ca.gov/grants-funding/active-funding/cesh.shtml
http://hcd.ca.gov/grants-funding/active-funding/cesh.shtml
http://hcd.ca.gov/grants-funding/active-funding/nplh.shtml
http://hcd.ca.gov/grants-funding/active-funding/nplh.shtml
https://www.cdss.ca.gov/inforesources/CDSS-Programs/Housing-Programs/CalWORKs-Housing-Support-Program
https://www.cdss.ca.gov/inforesources/CDSS-Programs/Housing-Programs/CalWORKs-Housing-Support-Program
https://www.cdss.ca.gov/inforesources/CDSS-Programs/Housing-Programs/CalWORKs-Housing-Support-Program
https://www.cdss.ca.gov/inforesources/CDSS-Programs/Housing-Programs/CalWORKs-Housing-Support-Program


Homeless Housing, Assistance, and Prevention Program (HHAP) – Program Guidance      10 
https://www.bcsh.ca.gov/hcfc 

Examples of measurable goals: 
1. Decrease the percent of our jurisdiction’s total homeless population

that is unsheltered by 10 percentage points annually (baseline of 65%
from 2018).

2. Reduce the number of people who become homeless for the first time
across our jurisdiction by 20% annually (baseline of 2,000 households
from 2018).

3. Increase the percent of successful shelter exits into permanent
housing by 5 percentage points annually (baseline of 60%).

The following documents must be submitted by all eligible applicants for an application to be 
reviewed: 

Document Description 
HHAP Application Narrative Applicants must submit the template provided by HCFC which includes 

a description of how the applicant will meet HS § 50219(a)(1-9).   
Annual HHAP Budget Applicants must submit an annual HHAP budget that includes how 

HHAP funds will be spent each year throughout the funding period. This 
budget should complement the elements requested in Section 5: 
Funding to Address Homelessness, of the HHAP application narrative.  

Letters of Support Letters from applicants in overlapping jurisdictions (i.e. CoC, large city, 
and/or county, acknowledging and agreeing to regional collaboration as 
described in the application.  

Redirection of Funds Documents 
(if applicable) 

If redirecting funds, applicants must submit a binding resolution or 
agreement that redirects the funds from one entity to the other and is 
signed by both jurisdictions. 

Authorized Signatory Form This form identifies person(s) authorized to sign the standard 
agreement and other required financial forms. 

Government Tax Identification 
Number (GovTIN) or Payee Data 
Record (STD 204) 

Forms must be submitted to receive disbursement. 

Disbursement Process 

HCFC is committed to disbursing HHAP funds in a timely manner. HHAP program funds will be 
disbursed within 90 days of the date the application is deemed complete. Once the application 
is deemed complete, HCFC will prepare and mail the award letter and standard agreement to 
the applicant/awardee within 30 days. The applicant/awardee will have up to 30 days to review 
and return the signed standard agreement and Request for Funds Form (RFF). Once HCFC 
receives the signed standard agreement and RFF from the applicant/awardee, funds will be 
disbursed within 30 days. 

Reporting Requirements 

As stated in HSC § 50221(a)(1-4), grantees will need to report on the following, as well as any 
additional information the agency deems appropriate or necessary:  

(1) An ongoing tracking of the specific uses and expenditures of any program funds
broken out by eligible uses listed, including the current status of those funds.

https://www.bcsh.ca.gov/hcfc


Homeless Housing, Assistance, and Prevention Program (HHAP) – Program Guidance      11 
https://www.bcsh.ca.gov/hcfc 

(2) The number of homeless individuals served by the program funds in that year, and a
total number served in all years of the program, as well as the homeless population
served.

(3) The type of housing assistance provided, broken out by the number of individuals.
(4) Outcome data for individual served through program funds, including the type of

housing that an individual exited to, the percent of successful housing exits, and exit
types for unsuccessful housing exits.

HCFC will include reporting requirements in the standard agreement executed prior to 
distribution of HHAP program funds to each CoC, large city, and county. The reporting template, 
including instructions and definitions will be provided by HCFC at a later date. 

In addition to the annual report, grantees will be required to submit a list of sub-recipient awards, 
which will include the name of the sub-recipient, the amount awarded, and the project type.  The 
final report and list of sub-recipients will be posted on HCFC’s web-site [HSC § 50217(e)(4)].   

Annual reports must be submitted to Agency as stated below: 

Date Document 

January 1, 2021 Annual Report #1 
January 1, 2022 Annual Report #2 
January 1, 2023 Annual Report #3 
January 1, 2024 Annual Report #4 
January 1, 2025 Annual Report #5 
January 1, 2026 Final Report 

Monitoring 

HCFC will use the annual reports submitted to ensure that grantees are on track to expend 100 
percent of program funds by June 30, 2025. In addition to the reporting requirements above, it 
is expected that CoC’s, large cities, and counties will provide direct oversight to recipients of 
HHAP funds.  HCFC will include additional monitoring requirements in the standard agreement 
executed prior to distribution of HHAP program funds to each CoC, large city, and county. 

Contact the Program 

HCFC will be providing ongoing technical assistance and training to support CoCs, large cities, 
and counties in successfully applying for and administering HHAP program funds. Additional 
information regarding the HHAP program is available on the HCFC website. To receive 
information releases regarding the HHAP program, please register for the program listserv. If 
you have questions, please direct them to the HCFC inbox at HCFC@AGENCY.ca.gov.

https://www.bcsh.ca.gov/hcfc
https://www.bcsh.ca.gov/hcfc/hhap_program.html
https://www.bcsh.ca.gov/hcfc/hhap_program.html
http://www.bcsh.ca.gov/hcfc/webapps/subscribe.php
http://www.bcsh.ca.gov/hcfc/webapps/subscribe.php
mailto:HCFC@BCSH.ca.gov
mailto:HCFC@BCSH.ca.gov


Homeless Housing, Assistance, and Prevention Program (HHAP) – Program Guidance      12 
https://www.bcsh.ca.gov/hcfc 

Definitions

Per HSC § 50216(a-q), below are the definitions for purposes of the HHAP program: 

a) “Agency” means the Business, Consumer Services, and Housing Agency.
b) “Applicant” means a continuum of care, city, or county.
c) “City” means a city or city and county that is legally incorporated to provide local

government services to its population. A city can be organized either under the
general laws of this state or under a charter adopted by the local voters.

d) “Continuum of care” means the same as defined by the United States Department
of Housing and Urban Development at Section 578.3 of Title 24 of the Code of
Federal Regulations.

e) “Coordinated Entry System” means a centralized or coordinated process
developed pursuant to Section 578.7 of Title 24 of the Code of Federal
Regulations, as that section read on January 10, 2019, designed to coordinate
homelessness program participant intake, assessment, and provision of referrals.
In order to satisfy this subdivision, a centralized or coordinated assessment system
shall cover the geographic area, be easily accessed by individuals and families
seeking housing or services, be well advertised, and include a comprehensive and
standardized assessment tool.

f) “Council” means the Homeless Coordinating and Financing Council created
pursuant to Section 8257 of the Welfare and Institutions Code

g) “Emergency shelter” has the same meaning as defined in subdivision (e) of Section
50801.

h) “Homeless” has the same meaning as defined in Section 578.3 of Title 24 of the
Code of Federal Regulations, as that section read on January 10, 2019.

i) “Homeless Management Information System” means the information system
designated by a continuum of care to comply with federal reporting requirements
as defined in Section 578.3 of Title 24 of the Code of Federal Regulations. The
term “Homeless Management Information System” also includes the use of a
comparable database by a victim services provider or legal services provider that
is permitted by the federal government under Part 576 of Title 24 of the Code of
Federal Regulations.

j) “Homeless point-in-time count” means the 2019 homeless point-in-time count
pursuant to Section 578.3 of Title 24 of the Code of Federal Regulations. A
jurisdiction may elect to instead use their 2017 point-in-time count if they can
demonstrate that a significant methodology change occurred between the 2017
and 2019 point-in-time counts that was based on an attempt to more closely align
the count with HUD best practices and undertaken in consultation with HUD
representatives. A jurisdiction shall submit documentation of this to the agency by
the date by which HUD’s certification of the 2019 homeless point-in-time count is
finalized. The agency shall review and approve or deny a request described in the
previous sentence along with a jurisdiction’s application for homeless funding.

k) “Homeless youth” means an unaccompanied youth between 12 and 24 years of
age, inclusive, who is experiencing homelessness, as defined in subsection (2) of
Section 725 of the federal McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act (42 U.S.C.
Sec. 11434a(2)). “Homeless youth” includes unaccompanied youth who are
pregnant or parenting.

https://www.bcsh.ca.gov/hcfc


 

Homeless Housing, Assistance, and Prevention Program (HHAP) – Program Guidance         13 
https://www.bcsh.ca.gov/hcfc 
 
 

l) “Housing First” has the same meaning as in Section 8255 of the Welfare and  
Institutions Code, including all of the core components listed therein 

m) “Jurisdiction” means a city, city that is also a county, county, or continuum of care, 
as defined in this section 

n) “Navigation center” means a Housing First, low-barrier, service-enriched shelter 
focused on moving homeless individuals and families into permanent housing that 
provides temporary living facilities while case managers connect individuals 
experiencing homelessness to income, public benefits, health services, shelter, 
and housing. 

o) “Program” means the Homeless Housing, Assistance, and Prevention program 
established pursuant to this chapter. 

p) “Program allocation” means the portion of program funds available to expand or 
develop local capacity to address immediate homelessness challenges, in the 
amount of six hundred fifty million dollars ($650,000,000).  

q) “Recipient” means a jurisdiction that receives funds from the agency for the 
purposes of the program.  

 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

https://www.bcsh.ca.gov/hcfc


Homeless Housing, Assistance, and Prevention Program (HHAP) – Program Guidance      14 
https://www.bcsh.ca.gov/hcfc 

Master Program Timeline 

Date Action Description 
Pre-Application Timeline 
October 2019 Program Guidance The guidance document includes program details, 

application information, and program timelines. 
October 2019- Ongoing Technical Assistance Outreach and technical assistance will be conducted by 

the HHAP team. 
November 2019 Application Map and 

Application Map Instructions 
An application map and instructions will be released in 
advance of the HHAP program Notice of Funding 
Availability (NOFA). The map will walk the applicant thru 
the application process and the information needed to 
complete the application. 

November 2019 HHAP Application Checklist 
Tool 

The tool is to assist eligible applicants in completing the 
application narrative.  It will also serve as the review tool 
for the HHAP team when reviewing applications. 

November 1, 2019 Submit request to use 2017 
PIT count 

This is the target date for eligible applicants to submit their 
request and justification to use their 2017 PIT count for 
their program allocation. 

November 1, 2019 Submit intent to redirect 
HHAP program allocation 

Eligible applicants notify HCFC of their interest in 
redirecting their program allocation and not apply directly 
for their HHAP program allocation. Redirection of funds 
will be allowed until February 15, 2020.  

December 2019 Frequently Asked Questions 
(FAQs)  

The FAQs include additional information and details about 
the program.  

Application, Award, and Disbursement Timeline 

Expected in November  
or December 2019 

2019 PIT count published HUD publishes the official 2019 PIT count data. 

November - December 
2019 

Final date to submit request 
to use 2017 PIT count 

Requests to use the 2017 PIT count must be submitted by 
midnight on the day HUD officially publishes the 2019 PIT 
count. 

Release of the 2019 
PIT count + 5 business 
days  

HHAP program allocations 
published 

Agency will publish the program allocations for each 
eligible applicant and identify if jurisdictions are using the 
2017 or 2019 PIT count. 

Release of the 2019 
PIT count + 10 
business days 

NOFA and Application 
released 

Agency will release the NOFA and application 10 business 
days after the 2019 PIT count is released by HUD 

February 15, 2020 Final date to submit 
applications 

Applications must be submitted by midnight on this date. 
Applications can be submitted immediately after the NOFA 
is opened and will be reviewed as they are received.  

April 1, 2020 Final date to make awards Agency will make awards on a rolling basis; however, all 
awards will be made by this date. 

Reporting and Spending Timeline 

January 1, 2021 Annual Report Due First annual report must be submitted to HCFC on or 
before this date. Reports are due every January 1, with a 
final report due January 1, 2026. 

May 31, 2023 HHAP program allocations 
to be contractually obligated 

Counties:  100% of program allocation must be 
contractually obligated. 
CoCs and large cities:  50% of program allocation must 
be contractually obligated. 
**see expenditure deadlines section for details** 

June 30, 2023 CoC and large cities must 
submit an alternative 
disbursement plan to 
Agency 

CoCs and large cities that did not contractually obligate 
50% of their program allocation must submit an alternative 
disbursement plan 
**see expenditure deadlines section for details** 

https://www.bcsh.ca.gov/hcfc


Homeless Housing, Assistance, and Prevention Program (HHAP) – Program Guidance      15 
https://www.bcsh.ca.gov/hcfc 

June 30, 2023 Counties must submit proof 
of program funds to be 
reverted to the CoC 

Counties that did not contractually obligate 100% of 
program funds must revert remaining funds to the CoC that 
serves the county. 
**see expenditure deadlines section for details** 

July 31, 2023 Agency to review and 
approve or deny alternative 
disbursement plans 

Agency will review and approve or deny alternative 
disbursement plans. 

December 31, 2023 Funds identified in an 
approved alternative 
disbursement plan must be 
fully expended 

CoCs and large cities with an approved alternative 
disbursement plan must provide evidence these identified 
funds have been fully expended.  Unspent funds must be 
returned to Agency 
**see expenditure deadlines section for additional details** 

June 30, 2025 HHAP program allocations 
to be fully expended 

HHAP program funds must be fully expended by the 
grantee, sub-grantees and/or contractors by this date.   
**The grantee will have until the final reports are due to 
pay out all invoices by sub-grantees and/or contractors** 

https://www.bcsh.ca.gov/hcfc


Item VI.B.



































1 

HOUSING AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIVISION 
COMMUNITY SERVICES DEPARTMENT 

STAFF REPORT PREPARED FOR CONTINUUM OF CARE BOARD 

Submitted by: Kimberlee Albers 
December 5, 2019 

I. PHASE II COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT
LeSar Development Consultants (LDC), the firm the County retained to develop Phase II of
the Community Action Plan to Address Homelessness, facilitated meetings with key
stakeholder groups and the community at large. In late October, meetings were held with
CoC Board members and strategy champions; people experiencing homelessness in both
Santa Maria and Santa Barbara; community members in Santa Maria, Santa Barbara, and
Lompoc; service providers; healthcare providers; and elected leaders. During the October 30
special meeting of elected officials, Supervisors Hart and Hartmann were appointed to the
Elected Officials Committee on Regional Homelessness Solutions. The next meeting has
been scheduled for January 13, 2020 at 4pm in south county; during this meeting, attendees
will review the draft plan. Feedback will be included in the plan due to the state on February
15.

II. POINT-IN-TIME COUNT
The 2020 PIT Count is Wednesday, January 29. A reminder that the CoC will be conducting
the unsheltered count annually during the surge funding. Home for Good and County HCD
are seeking CoC Board Members to serve in leadership roles at each of the logistic centers
on the day of the count. Please let Emily Allen or Lucille Boss know if you are interested.
Training details will be posted to https://www.liveunitedsbc.org/homeforgoodsbc

III. HEAP SUPPLEMENTAL PROJECT FUNDING
As noted in the General Review and Rank Policy for Supplemental Project Funding, in the
event that supplemental funding is available and there are unfunded, qualified applications,
the Competition Facilitator will: contact the unfunded applicant with the highest Review and
Rank score and discuss specifics whether the project application, as submitted, could move
forward successfully with the amount of funding available. County of Santa Barbara - County
Executive Office / Multidisciplinary Approach to Housing the Most Vulnerable Homeless has
accepted and will move forward with their HEAP project for approval by Board of
Supervisors on December 17.

Item VII.C.

https://www.liveunitedsbc.org/homeforgoodsbc


 

 
2 

IV. UPDATES TO STATE LEGISLATORS  
In November, County staff met with Assembly Member Monique Limón and Senator 
Hannah Beth Jackson to provide general updates about County activities. Kimberlee Albers 
provided updates on issues to address homelessness, which included: Phase I and II 
overview, strategies and solutions identified and in progress, data to drive further decision-
making, units completed and under development, successes, and needs.  
 

V. POSSESSIONS ORDINANCES WORKGROUP IN THE CITY OF SANTA 
BARBARA 
Santa Barbara Alliance for Community Transformation (SB ACT) is facilitating a workgroup 
focused on addressing community concerns related to possessions/shopping carts, and 
access to restrooms. Key stakeholders involved in the CoC and CES are engaged in these 
meetings with SB ACT and the City of Santa Barbara.  

 
VI. CITY OF GOLETA HOMELESSNESS STRATEGIC PLAN 

The City of Goleta recently hosted a meeting to gather input as a homeless strategic plan is 
developed.  The City is holding a drop-in Community Open House on the Homelessness 
Strategic Plan on Wednesday, December 11 from 4:00 – 6:00 p.m. at the Goleta Valley 
Community Center (5679 Hollister Avenue). The open house is an opportunity for 
community members to interact one-on-one with City staff and homelessness service 
providers, as well as share ideas and input on homelessness in our community. 
 

VII. “COMMUNITY MATTERS” OUTREACH 
On Veterans Day, the Santa Barbara News-Press radio station hosted County HCD and 
United Way Home for Good staff to discuss community needs and efforts to address 
homelessness on the “Community Matters” show.  

 
VIII. HOMELESSNESS 101 TRAINING IN GOLETA 

United Way Home for Good hosted a “Homelessness 101” training for south county residents 
to become familiar with many of the interventions and terms associated with homelessness. 
Attendees gained a much better understanding of the homeless system in Santa Barbara 
County, including the most up-to-date statistics and best practices for solving homelessness 
in our community. 
 
 



 

 
3 

IX. HOMELESSNESS COLLABORATIVE ALL-CALL MEETING IN SANTA 
BARBARA 
SB ACT invited service providers, government organizations, community organizations, and 
community members to the first "all-call" convening of the SB City Homelessness 
Collaborative. Mayor Murrillo and the City of SB alongside the SB Foundation served as co-
conveners of this meeting. They will be working with SB ACT this year to build a 
collaborative with a shared agenda to address homelessness and homelessness prevention 
in the city on a whole. County HCD staff presented data available to better inform and 
discuss project goals, collaborative structure, and ways to get involved.  
 

X. HUD HMIS CE DATA STANDARDS UPDATES IN 2020 
HUD launched new data standards on October 1, 2019. County HCD staff trained over 90 
HMIS end users on the new data elements. Intake assessments in HMIS have been 
substituted to collect the new required data. The new CE standards require detailed referral 
tracking for all participants in the Coordinated Entry System and will provide valuable 
information on the effectiveness of CES overtime.  
 

XI. 100 DAY CHALLENGE ON YOUTH HOMELESSNESS 
The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD), as part of its commitment 
to ending youth homelessness and in alignment with the goals set forth in the Federal 
Strategic Plan to Prevent and End Homelessness, has included Santa Barbara to engage in 
100-Day Challenges relating to youth homelessness in early 2020. County HCD staff will 
partner with Fighting Back Santa Maria Valley and Youth & Family Services – CIYMCA in 
these efforts.  
 

XII. HOUSING FIRST AND PERMANENT SUPPORTIVE HOUSING 
PRESENTATION TO SANTA BARBARA CITY COUNCIL  
County HCD, United Way Home for Good, and the Housing Authority of the City of Santa 
Barbara presented data, research, definitions, and models as requested by Santa Barbara 
City Council on November 26.  
  

XIII. INCLEMENT WEATHER SHELTERS DURING RECENT STORM  
Freedom Warming Centers activated across the County during the season’s first storms. 
FWC staff faced challenges securing a consistent location in Santa Maria. Good Samaritan 
Shelter is assisting FWC in Lompoc this season. PATH will begin offering “rain beds” 
beginning December 1st when weather triggers are met.  

 


	III.A. CoC Board Agenda December 5 2019
	IV.A. CoC Board Minutes October 28 2019
	V.A. Santa Barbara County Implementation Plan
	Activities

	VI.A. HHAP Program Guidance
	VI.B. 2019 MOU FUP
	CoC Signed MOU FUP 7.25.18
	coc signed mou

	VII.C. Staff Report
	staff rePORT PREPARED FOR Continuum of CARE BOARD




